UNITED NATIONS

Distr.
GENERAL
ECONOMIC A
' E/CONF.26/SR.2
‘ AN D 12 September 1958
ENGLISH

ORIGINAL: FRENCH

SOCIAL COUNCIL

UNITED NATTONS CONFERENCE ON INTERNATIONAL COMMERCTIAL ARBITRATION
SUMI-ARY RECORD OF THE SECOND MEETING
Held et Headquarters, New York,
on Wednesday, 21 Fay 1958, at 10.55 a.m.
CONTENTS

Adoption of the draft rules of procedure (E/CONF.26/5;
E/COMF.26/L.1 to L.5) {continued)

Consideration of the Draft Convention on the Recognition and
Enforcement of Foreign Arbitral Awards (E/2704+ and Corr.l, E/2822
and Add.l to 6; E/CONF.26/2, 26/% and Add.l, 26/h)

President: br. SCHURMAIIN Netherlands

Executive Secretary: Mr. SCHACHTER

58'1,"‘559 /o .o




E/CONF.26/SR.2
;- English
" Page 2

ADOPTION OF THE DRAFT RULES OF PROCEDURE (E/CONF.25/5; E/CONF.26/L.1 to L.5
(continued) '

The PRESIDENT announced that the United States had submitted a number
of amendments (E/CONF.26/L.2) to the draft rules of procedure (E/CONF.26/5)
- drawn up by the Secretary-General, an amendment (E/CONF.26/L.1) to which had
bezen adopted by the Conference at the preceding meeting.

Mr. COHN (TIsrael), commenting on the United States amendment to rule 1,
~observed that the Economic and Social Council had decided that the Conference
would be a conference of plenipotentiaries and that that decision could not be
reconsidered. Under the draft rules of proéedure, States could send observers
~to the Conference if they did not think that they should appoint plenipotentiaries.
it would be unfortunate if the participants in the Conference were mere
"representatives" whose exact status was not defined and who might, in fact,
not have been given full powers by their Govermments. He would, therefore, vote

against the first United States amendment.

Mr. URQUIA (E1 Salvador) and Mr. KANAKARATNE (Ceylon) said that they

. shared the Israel representative's reservations and would not support the

~ United States amendment.

Mr. MAURTUA (Peru) observed that a distinction should be made
between the right to participate in the Conference, which did not raise any
questlon other than that of the sovereignty of States, and the willingness of
States to sign or ratify an international instrument at the conclusion of the
Conference. In the light of that distinction, the Unitea.States amendment

. seemed acceptable to him and he would vote in its fawvour.

The PRESIDENT put the United States cmendment +to rule 1 of the draft
rules of procedure to the vote.

‘The first United States amendment (E/CONF.26/L.2, paragraph 1) was rejected

" by L4 votes to 7, with 15 abstentions.

Mr. COHN (Israel) proposed that the words "if possible, not later
than twenty-four hours” in rule 2 should be replaced by "not later than ten
- days", since it was customary for participants in an international conference

to have a certain amount of time in which to present their credentials.



E/CONF.26/SR.2
English
Page 3

The Lorael omendment (B/CONF.2G/L.4) was adopted oy 29 votes to one, with

5 ubstentions.

Mr. HEWMENT (Belgium), Mr. MALOLES (Philippines) and Mr. RENOUF
lfnstralin) said that they would vote in favour of the second United Otates
azendment | which proposed the appointment of' a Credentiale Ccumittee. It was
usual to appoint such a committee ir all conferences in which there were many
sarticipants and the procedure had teen followed at the recent Conference on the
Law of the Gea.

lire VIIKOV (Union of toviet €ociaslist Republics), supported by
¥r, POCULKA (Czechoslovekia) thought thut there was no reason to depart froum
sre Arafl prepared by the Gecretary-General (E/CONF.26/5). The rules of
srecedure of the Economic and Sociel Council provided that the credentisls of
it3 memters should be examined by the President and the Vice-Presidents. The
zzze rule was followed by other bodies and by numercus conferences. licreover,
“ur nesbers of the Credentials Committee would find it irpossible to take part
in 213 the proceedings of the Conference. In the circumstances, scme doubts

zizat te entertained as tu the real intentions of the authors of that amendment.

Mr. MAURTUA (Peru) thought that the examination of credentials provided

e

<r in ruie 2 of the draft rules of procedure was intended merely for purposes
2l infiruation and that, in any case, it would be necessary to re-examine the

srzientisals wien the Convention was signed.

Sir Claude COREA (Ceylon) said thet he had no special preference for

¢ltrer <ne of the proposed procedures, vut in view of the Iact that it was ccmmon
¢ractice to appoint an ad hoe ccumittee , he did not, in principle, see any valid

~n for opposing it,

The PRESIDENT put the secord Unjited States amendment to the vote.
he amendment (E/CONF.6/L.2, peragrapn 2) was adopted by 27 votes to 3,

-

#ivz £ sbstentions.

lir. PAPHTARY (Indis) was afraid that the third United States amendrent,
¥.lzr se=med to Te tased on the precedure zdopted by the Conference on the Law of

22 lez, might bave the erfect or urduly delaying tne prcceedincs. Ihe Conference

1Ltz Lzw of the Bea had had to copsider polivically important and cintroversial

[oee



E/CONF.26/SR.2
English
Page U4

(Mr. Daphtary, India)

issues, whereas nobody questioned the desirability of a convention on the
recognition and enforcement of foreign arbitral awards. The comments on the
draft Convention were in fact more concerned with questions of procedure than
with questions of principle. In the clrcumstances, he did not see the need for
the United States amendment and would oppose it.

Mr. RENOUF (Australia) said that he would vote against the United States

amendment for the same reasons.

Mr. URQUIA (El Salvador) felt that an effort should be made to have
the draft convention adopted by as meny States as possitle and that a majority
of at least two-thirds should therefore be required on ell questions of substance,
He would support the third United States amendment.

Mr. BEALE (United States of America), replying to a gquestion by
Mr. COHN (Israel) , explained that his amendment would only replace the first
sub=-paragraph of rule 23 and that the second sub-paragraph would remain unchanged.

The PRESIDENT put the third United States amendment (E/CONF.26/L.2,
paragreph 3) to the vote. :
It was decided by il votes to 12, with lb abstentions that the first
sub-paragraph of rule 23 of the draft rules of procedure should be replaced
by the text in paragraph 3 of document E/CONF.26/L.2.

Mr. SCHACHTER (Executive Secretary) drew the attention of the
Conference to rule 21 of the draft rules of procedure and pointed out that it was
the intention of the authors that the two-thirds majority rule regerding
reconsideration of proposals should apply not only to plerary meetings but also
to the work of committees and sub-committees.

Mr. COHN (Isreel) thought that rule 42 clearly showed that that was
the intention.

The FiISIDENT suggested that the Conference should adopt that
interprevaiion.
It was so decided.

Jonn




E/CONF.26/SR.2
English
Page 5

Mr. MATOLES (Philippines) submitted an emendment (E/CONF.26/L.3)
$o bring rule 44 into harmony with the provisions of rule 43. Under rule 43,
States which had been invited to the Conference but which were not participating
in it could submit proposals but did not have the right to participate in the
proceedings, although under rule 44 that right was recognized in the case of
representetives of the specialized agencies and other inter-governmental
organizations. He thought that the representatives of non-participant States
should at least have the same rights as those of the specialized agencies and
intergovernmental organizations. The latter had had ample opportunity to
express their point of view concerning the draft convention. The Conference was
essentially a conference of plenipotentiaries and the latter should properly
teke the leading part in the discussions. For those reasons, he proposed that
representatives of the specialized agencies and of other intergovernmental
organizations should only be authorized %o participate in the Conference under
the conditions specified by the President and upon his invitation, and only for
purposes of clarifying & controversial matter,

Mr. POINTET (Switzerland), Mr. URQUIA (E1 Selvador) and Mr. KORAL (Turkey)
thought that it would be unfortunate if organizations with great experience
in commercial arbitration were uneble to teke part in the debate for procedural
reasons. They would therefore oppose the Philippine amendment.

Mr. COHN (Israel) pointed out that under rule 9 of the rules of
procedure the President was empowered to control the proceedings and, in
particular, to limit the length of speeches.

The PRESIPENT statéd that only two organizations had sent observers:
the Hague Conference on Private International Law and the International Institute
for Unification of Private Law.

Mr. VAN HOOGSTRATEN (Hague Conference on Private International Law)
said that it would be awkward if his organization were not granted the treatment

it had itself accorded to Government representatives participating in its work,
e suggested that the text drawn up by the Secretariat should be maintained.

[eo.




E/CONF.26/SR.2
English
Page 6

The PRESIDENT put the Philippine amendment to rule L& to the vote.
The Philippine emendment (E/CONF.26/L,3) was rejected by 28 votes to 1,
with 10 abstentions.

The PRESIDENT invited the Conference to consider the United States
emendment (E/CONF.26/1.2, peragroph 4) to rule U5 of the draft rules of procedure,

Replying to questions by Mr. URQUIA (El Salvador) and by the PRESIDENT

on the precise scope of the amendment, Mr., BEALE (United States of America)
explained that invitations to submit written statements would always be made by the
Conference itself, whether the statements were to be presented in plenary or at

meetings of committees and sub~committees.

Mr. COHN (Israsel) thought thet in the circumstances, the words “or to
any of its committees or sub-committees" should be inserted after the words

"submit to it" in the second paragraph of rule U5.

Mr. BEALE (United States of America) accepted that smendment.
The United States amendment (E/CONF.26/L.2, paragreph 4), as amended, was
adopted by 29 votes to 4, with 10 abstentions.

Mr. RAMOS (Argentina) proposed that the words "Where a two-thirds
majority is not required under Rule 23" should be inserted at the beginning of .

rule 51 in order to take account of the amendments introduced by the Conference
in rale 23,

The PRESIDENT put the proposal to the vote.
The Argentine amendment (E/CONF.26/L.5) was adopted by 21 votes to none, with
17 abstentions,

The PRESIDENT invited the Conference to adopt its draft rules of
procedures as a whole.

The draft rules ef procedures (E/CONF.26/5) as a whole were adopted.




E/CONF.20/SR. 2
Englich
Fage o

COUSILERATION CF THE DRAFT CONVENTION ON THE RECOGNITION AND ENFOKCEMENT OF
FOKEIGY ARBITRAL AWARDS (E/0704 and Corr.l; E/2822 and Add.l to 6; E/CONF.2€/2,
26/3 und hddel, P0/W)

Gereral debate

Mre MATIIUICCT (Ttaly) said he wvas generally in fazvour of the draft
Convention (L/270h and Cerr.l)e fThe draft offered an intermediate and reslistic
solution that would make it possible to meet the needs of the buciness community
while safeguarding the jurisdiceticaal prerogatives of Jtates. At the present time
there wus no possibility of securing acceptance of o solution founded solely on the
princirle of contractual autoncmy, in vhich the law would be relegoted to o
secondary position and would be resorted to only ic the absence of arn agreement
between the parties. Application would have t0 be made to the courtes for the
enforcemcnt of arbitral awards and for psychological reasons the courts could
hardly be expected to have confidence iu an award whick had not beer made withirn
the fromeverk ¢f o legal system and whose form or substance did rot respect the
nandstory pravisions of the lave In any case, absolute liberalisk was & taing of
the past. The sphere of private law was steadily and inevitably contracting as
optioral provisions gave ground to mandatory rules of law, If the Conventiorn was
to be retified by o greater mumber of States than the 1927 Geneva Convention , it
wild be necessary to eschew unduly revolutionary solutions whose acceptance
wuld be impeded by the conservatism of jurists.

The draft Convention before the Confereuce took into account toe considerations
e k53 mentioned and also the need to improve on the Geneva Conventior as much as
Fessitle., It gave proper place to the wishes of the parties while subordinating
thcse wishes to the mandatory rules of the laws governing arbitration., Horeover,
assimilsting arbitral awards to judiciel decisions, the draft provided tha*t the
awarl must be finsl and operstive under the law governing the proceedings, Lastly,
e IV ~ g very importantirr.veticn as comwpared with tbe Geneva Conventicn -
tke irafi provided a partial unificatior of certeir rules of procedure,

While gecepting the draft ik principle, his deiegation felt that it could be
Zirevel Ir certain respects, First , the Conference shouic reccnsider the

“€linitior of the awurdy O wWiiech the Convention wouid aprly. ‘The mere Tues that

foeee




E/CONF 260 /GR0 2
English
Page 8

(Mro_Matteuccl, [taly)

an award had been made in a country other than that in which it was sought to be
relied upon was nol. enough Lo make it o foreign award from bLhe point of view of
the country of enforcemeut, The Conference should seek other criteria better
auited Lo the purpose of the Convention, which was Intended to facilitate the
aettiement of international conmercial disputes, Secondly, it was desirable that
the quealion of the recognibion and eniforcement of arbitral awards should be
resolved al the same time as that of the recognition of the validity of arbitral
clauases, na the two questions were closely related, Such a solution would be
conslatent with the Geneva tnstruments of 1925 and 1927 and would eliminate the
difttcant problem of co-ordinating the new Convention with those instruments,
Thirdly, it also aeemed desirable to simplify the provision relating to the
verification by the enforcing judge of the fact that the award had become final
and operative in the country fn which it had been made, In that connexion the
solutions suggested in the pote by the Secretary-General (B/CONF.26/2) deserved
considerations Consideration might also be given to the problem of criteria to

be used ir determining the law applicable to arbitral proceedings.

M. BEALE (United States of America) said that his Government was
aware that it was necessary to improve both the law and practice of arbitration
if it was desired that that institution should play its part properly in the
settlement. of disputes arising out of international trade. It was the first time
that the Government of the United States was taking part in an important conference
on cerrercial arbitration., OJSuch participation showed that the United States
realized the full benefit which countries could derive from the swift and
inextensive settlement in an atmosphere of goodwill of private disputes arising
out of international trade, ' '

The Government of the United States was happy to note tbat the agenda of the
Corference {E/CONF.26/1) included consideration of measures for increasing the
effectiveness of international ccmmercial arbitration., In view of the differing

iaee



E/CONF.26/8R.2
English
Page 9

(Mr. Beale, United States)

‘the Unlted States delegation was authorized to take part in the discuasion
sf any questioun which might be put before the Conference, as the United States
Government considered thal any proposal which might imporve the law or practice
of arbitration was worthy ol cluse examination by the experts attending the
Crnference.

In studying arbitration throughout the world, the United States delegation
had been struck by the ucefulness of a pragmatic epproach. The United States
delepatlion believed that the improvement of arbvitration methods, the
standardization of arbitration clauses, the drafting of more efficient rules
sf procedure and the adoption of uniform arbitration laws would be most
profitable. Private organizations dealing with such questions had already
dsne valuable work in that direction locally, naiionally and even internationally,
ard it vags to be hoped that the Conference would provide an opportunity for further

progress.

Mr. COLOMA-SILVA (Ecuador) seid that Ecuador had taken part in drawing
P the draft Convention (E/2704 and Corr.l) which he approved ealthough he
welieved that it could be bettered. Arbitration held an important place in
Zcuador both in legislation and in practice, and commercial contracts between

Eeuadorian and foreign undertskings always contained an arbitration clause.
Lroiteation provided modern international trade with the flexibility and
rapidity it needed. It would most certainly be desirable to adopt universal
rules dealing both with the substance and the procedure of international
cozmercial arbitration as such rules would make it possible to solve conflicts
tetween different national legislationse; such a scheme seemed, however,
sver-ambitious for the moment. The d.raft Convention represented &n advance as
cmpared with the 1927 Geneva Convention and che 1923 Protocol on Arbitration
Clauses. . Zeusdor was perticularly in favour of the draft Convention as its
mational legislation contained no law on procedure dealing specifically with
disputes arising from international trade relations.

The Ecuadorian delegation approved the Secreiary-General's comuents in
faragraphs 3, b and 5 of his note (E,CONF.206,2) with reference to the scope of
ihe Cenvertion as defined in article I. His delegation alss approved the opinion

s

expressed in paragraph G of the note regarding article I (2).



E/CONF.26/8R.2
English
Page 10

(Mr. Coloma-Silva, Ecuador)

The comments and suggestions made in paragraphs 7 and 8 regarding procedure
for enforcement of arbitral awards were extremely valuable and in particular the
‘Suggestion in article IT to the effect that arbitral awards would be enforceable
by & simplified and rapid procédure which should in no event be more complicated
than the procedure applied to domestic arbitral awards.

With regard to articles IIT and IV of the draft Convention which were the
subject of paragraphs 9 to 24 of the ﬁote by the Secretary-General, the Teuadoriar
delegation reserved its right to express an opinion at a later stage. He could,
however, at the present stage, state that he was in favour of article IIT (a) and
not in favour of the end of article IIT (b). His delegation approved the three
formulae suggested by the Secretary-General in paragraph 16 of his note to avoid
“the disadvantages afising from article IIT (b); his delegation expressed its
preference for the third formula. It also sgreed with the Secretary~General
regarding the advisability of adding in the Convention the grounds for refusal
enumerated in paragraph 17 of the note.

The Ecuadorian delegation also believed that sub-paragraph (f) ghould
be deleted from article IV, as it would allow defendants to have recourse 1o
dilatory tactics; the end of sub-paragraph (g) should also be made clearer if
not deleted. In sub-paragraph (h) it would be enough to mention the
incompatibility of the award with public policy without speaking of the
fundamental principles of the law. ILastly, the Ecuadorian delegation agfeed
with the comments made by the Secretary-Genmeral in paragraphs 25 to 27 regarding
the relationship between any new multilateral convention and other treaties

or laws relating to‘the samé subject.

The meeting rose at 1 p.m.




